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Answer 3 new questions in your speaking
booklet: make sure you use structures listed at
the end of each speaking booklet.

Translation: do it without looking, correct it
and learn it by heart: You have sentences

focused on a different grammar point every
week.

Learn/revise the 4 new verbs in all tenses: you can
cut out the labels and write sentences at the back.
Use them as flash cards. If it’s too much to learn all

of it start with I/you/she/he/on in the present/future
and passé composé

Learn/revise vocab/ reading exercise
You have a vocab list and a reading exercise for

each week

Describe a picture with your own words,
compare with the answer, memorise the best

anser you can. Always make sure not to be
overwehlmed. Start small if necessary (1

sentence), but always make sure you stretch
yourself to your full potential.

Practice you questions/answers for speaking.

Each week, do the following tasks for at least 20 minutes



semaine 1



to have

I have/I’m having
you have/you’re

having
he has/he’s having

we have/we’re having
you have/you’re

having
they have/they’re

having

present
to be

I am/I am being
you are/you’re being

she is/she is being

we are/we’re being
you are/you’re being

they are/they’re
being

present
to do

I do/I’m doing
you do/you’re doing
he does/he is doing

we do/we’re doing
you do/you’re doing
they do/they’re doing

present

to go

I go/I’m going
you go/you’re going
he goes/he’s going

we go/we’re going
you go/you’re going
they go/they’re going

present
Avoir

j’ai
tu as

il a/elle a/on a

nous avons
vous avez

elles ont/ils ont

present
être

je suis
tu es

elle est/on est

nous sommes
vous êtes

ils sont/elles sont

present

faire

je fais
tu fais

il fait/elle fait

nous faisons
vous faites

elles font/ils font

present

aller

je vais
tu vas

il va/elle va/on va

nous allons
vous allez

ils vont/elles vont

present



to have

 I will have
you will have
he will have

we will have
you will have
they will have

future
to be

I will be
you will be
she will be

we will be
you will be
they will be

future
to do

I will do/make
you will do/make

he/she will do/make

we will do/make
you will do/make
they will do/make

future

to go

I will go
you will go

she/he will go

we will go
you will go
they will go

future
Avoir

j’aurai
tu auras

il aura/elle aura

nous aurons
vous aurez

elles/ils  auront

futur
être

je serai
tu seras

elle sera/il sera

nous serons
vous serez

ils/elles seront

futur

faire

je ferai
tu feras

il/elle fera

nous ferons
vous ferez

ils/elles feront

futur

aller

j’irai
tu iras

elle/il ira

nous irons
vous irez

ils/elles iront

futur



to have

I had
you had

he/she/we had

we had
you had
they had

perfect
to be

I was
you were

she/he was

we were
you were
they were

perfect
to do

I did/made
you di/made

he/she did/made

we did/made
you did/made
they did/made

perfect

to go

I went
you went

she/he went

we went
you went
they went

perfect
Avoir

j’ai eu
tu as eu

il/elle/on a eu

nous avons eu
vous avez eu

ils/elles ont eu

passé composé
être

j’ai été
tu as été

elle/il a été

nous avons été
vous avez été

elles/ils ont été

faire

j’ai fait
tu as fait

il/elle/on a fait

nous avons fait
vous avez fait

ils/elles ont fait

aller

je suis allé.e
tu es allé.e

elle/il est allé.e

nous sommes allé.es
vous êtes allé.es

ils/elles sont allé.es

passé composé passé composé passé composé



Avoir

j’avais
tu avais

il/elle/on avait

nous avions
vous aviez

elles/ils avaient

imparfait

to have

I used to have
I was having

you used to have
she was having
he used to have
we were having
you were having

they used to have
they were having

imperfect
être

j’étais
tu étais

elle/il était

nous étions
vous étiez

ils/elles étaient

imparfait

to be

I used to be/was being
You used to be
He used to be
she was being
we used to be
we were being
you were being

they used to have

imperfect
faire

je faisais
tu faisais

elle/il/on faisait

nous faisions
vous faisiez

ils/elles faisaient

imparfait

to do

I used to do/was doing
you used to do
she used to do
he was doing
we used to do
we were doing
you were doing
they used to do

imperfect
aller

j’allais
tu allais

il/elle/on allait

nous allions
vous alliez

ils/elles allaient

imparfait

to go

I used to go/was going
you used to go
he used to go
we used to go

you were going
they used to go
they were going

imperfect



Nouns:
une armoire                  a warderobe
une pièce                       a room
une salle de classe   a classroom
un ascenceur               a lift
des escaliers                 staircase
une clé                            a key
un lit                                 a bed
une armoire                   a warderobe
la cuisine                       the kitchen
un bain                            a bath
la douche                       the shower
un logement                 accomodation
un robinet                      a tap
une chaise                    a chair

Verbs:
dormir           to sleep
parler            to speak
ranger           to tidy up
louer              to rent/hire
coûter           to cost
se garer        to park
rentrer           to return

Adjectives:
mauvais.e            bad
simple                    simple
récent.e                 recent
court.e                    short
riche                        rich
cher/chère          expensive
beau/belle          beautiful
confortable         comfortable
bienvenu.e           welcome

Adverbs:
heureusement          fortunately
complètement         completely
certainement            certainly
bien-sûr                       of course
récemment                 recently

quantity:
beaucoup de             a lot of
peu de                           little
trop de                          too many/much of
plus de                          more of

frequency words:
d’abord                             first
puis                                     then
enfin                                   finally
donc                               so/therefore
sans                                    without

Negatives:
ne....plus                   not anymore
ne ...rien                    nothing
ne...jamais               never



Une soirée catastrophique

Hier je suis rentrée à la maison très tard. D’abord, j’ai garé mon vélo dans le jardin près d’un arbre. Premier
problème: impossible de trouver la clé de la maison. J’ai cherché ma clé dans mon sac pendant dix minutes
puis je l’ai enfin trouvée dans la poche de mon pantalon. Puis je voulais me laver. J’ai monté les escaliers
pour aller dans la salle de bain et j’ai ouvert le robinet de la baignoire pour prendre un bain. Je suis allée dans
ma chambre, j’ai posé mon sac sur le lit, j’ai ouvert l’armoire et j’ai pris mon pyjama. J’avais faim donc je  suis
descendue dans la cuisine. J’ai pris un paquet de gâteaux à l’envers et tous les gâteaux  sont tombés par
terre... J’ai commencé à nettoyer quand j’ai remarqué que l’eau descendait les escaliers... Quelle horreur,
j’avais oublié le robinet ouvert dans la salle de bain et toute la salle de bain et ma chambre étaient
inondées!!

Questions

1- What are the 3 problems in the story?
2- Where did she find her key?
3- What rooms were flooded?
4- Where did she park her bike?
5- Why did she open the tap of the bath?
6-Why did she go down to the kitchen?1- Answers

1- She couldn’t find her key, all the cakes fell on the floor,
she flooded the bathroom and her bedroom.
2- In her trousers’ pocket.
3- The bathroom and the bedroom.
4- In the garden next to a tree.
5- She wanted to wash/have a bath.
6-She was hungry.1-



Qu’est-ce qu’il y
a sur la photo?

1- On peut voir un lit. We
can see a bed.

2- Il y a une armoire.
There is a warderobe.

3- Il y a deux fenêtres avec
des rideaux. There are 2
windows with curtains.
4- C’est bien rangé. It’s

tidy.



All the reflexive verbs
examples:
se marier                to get married
se promerner        to go walking
se garer                   to park (a car)
se laver                    to wash (yourself)

Verbs with movement
examples:
venir                 to come
partir                to leave or to go
rentrer             to return/go back home
sortir                 to go out
rester                to stay
tomber             to fall (down)
retourner         to go back

Entraine-toi (practice), traduis:

1- I went on holiday._______________________________________________________

2- You got married. ________________________________________________________

3- The rain fell all night.___________________________________________________

4- He parked behind the town hall._______________________________________

5- We went out in town.___________________________________________________

6- You went for a walk. ____________________________________________________

7- They stayed in bed._____________________________________________________

8- I came late.______________________________________________________________

9- You went back home.___________________________________________________

Translation

Les verbes qui utilisent 
être au passé composé



All the reflexive verbs
examples:
se marier                to get married
se promerner        to go walking
se garer                   to park (a car)
se laver                    to wash (yourself)

Verbs with movement
examples:
venir                 to come
partir                to leave or to go
rentrer             to return/go back home
sortir                 to go out
rester                to stay
tomber             to fall (down)
retourner         to go back

Answers

1- I went on holiday.___Je suis parti.e en vacances.___

2- You got married. ___Tu t’es marié.e.

3- The rain fell all night.____La pluie est tombée toute la nuit.

4- He parked behind the town hall._____Il s’est garé derrière la mairie.

5- We went out in town.__Nous sommes sorti.es en ville.

6- You went for a walk. __Vous vous êtes promenés.

7- They stayed in bed.__Ils sont restés au lit.______

8- I came late.__Je suis arrivé.e en retard.____________

9- You went back home.____Tu es rentré.e à la maison.________

Les verbes qui utilisent 
être au passé composé



To become
to come back
to go up
to go home/go back inside
to go out
to come
to arrive
to be born
to go down
to enter
to go back
to fall
to stay
to go
to die
to leave

Remember Devenir
Revenir
Monter
Rentrer
Sortir
Venir
Arriver
Naître
Descendre
Entrer
Retourner
Tomber
Rester
Aller
Mourir 
Partir

Devenu
Revenu
Monté
Rentré
Sorti
Venu
Arrivé
Né
Descendu
Entré
Retourné
Tombé
Resté
Allé
Mort
Parti

p
as

t 
p

ar
ti

ci
p

le

Verbs
using 
to be
être

 as an
auxiliary

in the
past

tense



semaine 2



must

I must
you must

he/she must

we must
you must
they must

present
to want

I want
you want
she wants

we want
you want
they want

present
can

I can
you can
he can

we can
you can
they can

present

to take

I take
you take

he/she takes

we take
you take
they take

present
devoir

je dois
tu dois

il/elle/on  doit

nous devons
vous devez

elles doivent

present
vouloir

je veux
tu veux

elle veut

nous voulons
vous voulez
ils veulent

present

pouvoir

je peux
tu peux
il peut

nous pouvons
vous pouvez

elles/ils peuvent

present

prendre

je prends
tu prends

il/elle prend

nous prenons
vous prenez

ils/elles prennent

present



must

I’ll have to
you’ll have to
she’ll have to

we’ll have to
you’ll have to

they will have to

future
to want

I will want
you will want

he/she will want

we will want
you will want
they will want

future
can

I’ll be able to
you’ll be able to

he will be able to

we’ll be able to
you’ll be able to

they will be able to

future

to take

I  will take
you will take

he/she will  take

we  will take
you will  take
they  will take

future
devoir

je devrai
tu devras

il/elle devra

nous devrons
vous devrez

ils/elles devront

future
vouloir

je voudrai
tu voudras

il/elle voudra

nous voudrons
vous voudrez

ils/elles voudront

future

pouvoir

je pourrai
tu pourras

il pourra

nous pourrons
vous pourrez

elles pourront

future

prendre

je prendrai
tu prendras
elle prendra

nous prendrons
vous prendrez
ils prendront

future



devoir

j’ai dû
tu as dû
elle a dû

nous avons dû
vous avez dû

ils/elles ont dû

passé composé

must

I had to
you had to

he/she had to

we had to
you had to

they had to 

vouloir

j’ai voulu
tu as voulu

il/elle a voulu

nous avons voulu
vous avez voulu

ils ont voulu

to want

I will want
you will want

he/she will want

we will want
you will want
they will want

passé composé
pouvoir

j’ai pu
tu as pu

il/elle a pu

nous avons pu
vous avez pu

ils ont pu

can

I could
you could

he/she could

we could
you could
they could

passé composé
prendre

j’ai pris
tu as pris

il/elle a pris

nous avons pris
vous avez pris

elles/ils ont pris

to take

I took
you took

he/she took

we took
you took
they took

passé composé
passé composé passé composé passé composé

passé composé



devoir

je devais
tu devais

il/elle devait

nous devions
vous deviez

ils/elles devaient

past continuous

must

I used to have to
I was having to

you were  having to
he’she was  having to

we were  having to
you were having to
they were having to

vouloir

je voulais
tu voulais

il/elle voulait

nous voulions
vous vouliez

elles voulaient

to want

I used to want
I was wanting

you were wanting
he/she was wanting

we were wanting
you were wanting
they were wanting

pouvoir

je pouvais
tu pouvais
il pouvait

nous pouvions
vous pouviez
ils pouvaient

can

I used to be able to
I was being able to

you were being able to
he was being able to

we were being able to
you were being able to
they were being able

to

prendre

je prenais
tu prenais
il prenait

nous prenions
vous preniez

elles prenaient

to take

I used to take
I was taking

you were taking
he was taking

we were taking
you were taking
they were taking

past continuous
past continuous past continuous past continuous
past continuouspast continuouspast continuous



Nouns:
le mariage                  marriage/wedding
la mairie                      town hall
le/la maire                 Mayor
la femme                    women/wife
le fiancé                      groom/fiancé
le bonheur                  happiness
l’amour                        the love
le hors-d’oeuvre      starter (food)
le plat principal       main
la carte                        menu
le canard                    duck (meat/animal
la serveuse                waitress
la pluie                        the rain Verbs:

donner                  to give
réserver                 to book
commander        to order
gagner                   to win
perdre                    to lose
économiser          to save
préparer                 to prepare

Adjectives:
mouillé.e                    wet
sucré.e                      sweet
incroyable               incredible
splendide                splendid
bavard                      chatty
malade                     ill
long.ue                     long
bon.ne                      good

Adverbs:
seulement              only
à l’heure                  on time
en retard                  late 
maintenant             now
souvent                    often

quantity:
beaucoup de             a lot of
peu de                           little
trop de                          too many/much of
plus de                          more of

high frequency words:
par contre                  however
pendant                      during/for
selon                             according to
où                                    where
au lieu de                      instead of

Negatives:
ni...ni....                     neither...nor
ne....plus                   not anymore
ne ...rien                    nothing
ne...jamais               never



Un mariage
en France

Madame, la Maire La pièce montée



On va se marier!!!

Hier mon amoureux m’a demandé en mariage. Quel bonheur! J’ai immédiatement réservé une salle pour la
fête et commandé une trés belle robe. Le mariage sera splendide. Je n’ai pas économisé d’argent mais mes
parents sont riches, ils vont payer pour la salle, ma robe et le restaurant. En hors-d’oeuvre, nous allons
manger du canard, en plat principal de la viande de boeuf avec des petits légumes et en dessert une pièce
montée, bien-sûr! Les serveurs et les serveuses porteront un uniforme noir et blanc. Pour la cérémonie à la
mairie, la Maire est une amie de ma mère, c’est une femme incroyable, son discours sera superbe!

Questions
1- Who is going to pay for the wedding,why?
2- What is the starter going to be?
3- Where are they going to get married?
4- What is the dessert going to be?
5- What is the main going to be?
6-What does she say about the
waiters/waitresses?-

Answers
1- Her parents because they are rich and she didn’t save
any money.
2- Duck
3- The ceremony is going to be at the town hall (Mairie)
4- A tower of choux buns (traditional wedding dessert).
5- Beef and veg
6-They are going to wear white and black uniforms.-



Qu’est-ce qu’il y
a sur la photo?

1- C’est un mariage. It’s a
wedding.

2- On peut voir les fiancés.
We can see the bride and

the groom.
3- Ils ont l’air heureux.

They look happy.
4- La femme porte une

belle robe. The woman is
wearing a beautiful dress.
5- C’est à l’extérieur. It’s

outside.



beaucoup
plus 
moins

                      + de + noun
peu                   
trop
un paquet                  
              

Entraine-toi (practice), traduis:

1- Now, my parents have more money.__________________________________

2- There are a lot of rooms in my house._________________________________

3- I bought sweets bags for the guests.__________________________________

4- Tomorrow, there will be less rain._____________________________________

5- It’s too wet.___________________________________________________

6- She has too much money. _____________________________________________

7- I prefer to invite less friends.__________________________________________

8- Few people want to come._____________________________________________

9- We ordered a lot of duck meat._________________________________________

Translation

Quantities

beaucoup
plus 
moins

                      + adjective
peu                   
trop
un paquet                  
              



beaucoup
plus 
moins

                      + de + noun
peu                   
trop
un paquet                  
              

Answers

1- Now, my parents have more money. Maintenant, mes parents ont
plus d’argent.
2- There are a lot of rooms in my house._Il y a beaucoup de pièces
dans ma maison.
3- I bought sweets bags for the guests.__J’ai acheté des paquets de
bonbons pour les invités.
4- Tomorrow, there will be less rain.__Demain, il y aura moins de
pluie.
5- It’s too wet.____C’est trop mouillé.

6- She has too much money. __Elle a trop d’argent.

7- I prefer to invite less friends.__Je préfère inviter moins d’amis.

8- Few people want to come.__Peu de gens veulent venir.

9- We ordered a lot of duck meat.__On a commandé beaucoup de
canard.

Translation

beaucoup
plus 
moins

                      + adjective
peu                   
trop
un paquet                  
              

Quantities
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to come

I’m coming/I cone
you’re coming/come

he/she cones...

we’re coming/ come
you’re coming/come
they’re coming/come

present
to see

I’m seeing/see
you’re seeing/see
he’s seeing/sees

we’re seeing/see
you’re seeing/see
they’re seeing/see

present
must

I’m saying/say
you’re saying/say
she’s saying/says

we’re saying/say
you’re saying/say
they’re saying/say

present

to give

I’m giving/give
you’re giving/give
she’s giving/gives

we’re giving/give
you’re giving/give
they’re giving/give

present
venir

je viens
tu viens

il/elle vient

nous venons
vous venez

ils/elles viennent

present
voir

je vois
tu vois
il voit

nous voyons
vous voyez
elles voient

present

dire

je dis
tu dis

elle dit

nous disons
vous dites
ils disent

present

donner

je donne
tu donnes
elle donne

nous donnons
vous donnez
ils donnent

present



to come

I will come
you will cone

he/she will come

we will come
you will come
they will cone

future
to see

I will see
you will see...

future
must

I will say
you will say...

future

to give

I’m giving/give
you’re giving/give
she’s giving/gives

we’re giving/give
you’re giving/give
they’re giving/give

future
venir

je viendrai
tu viendras

il/elle viendra

nous viendrons
vous viendrez

ils/elles viendront

future
voir

je verrai
tu verras

il/elle/on verra

nous verrons
vous verrez

ils/elles verront

future

dire

je dirai
tu diras

il/elle/on dira

nous dirons
vous direz

ils/elles diront

future

donner

je donnerai
tu donneras
elle donnera

nous donnerons
vous donnerez
ils donneront

future



venir

je suis venu.e
tu es venu.e

il/elle  est venu.e

nous sommes venu.es
vous êtes venu.es

ils/elles sont venu.es

passé composé

to come

I came
you came

he/she/we  came...

voir

j’ai vu
tu as vu

il/elle/on a vu

nous avons vu
vous avez vu

ils/elles ont vu

to see

I saw
you saw

he/she/we  saw...

dire

j’ai dit
tu as dit

il/elle/on a dit

nous avons dit
vous avez dit

ils/elles ont dit

must

I said
you said

he/she/we said...

donner

j’ai donné
tu as donné

il/elle/on a donné

nous avons donné
vous avez donné

ils/elles ont donné

to give

I gave
you gave

he/she/we gave...

passé composé passé composé passé composé
passé composépassé composépassé composépassé composé



venir

je venais
tu venais

il/elle/on venait

nous venions
vous veniez

ils/elles venaient

imparfait

to come

I used to come
I was coming

you used to come
you were coming...

voir

je voyais
tu voyais

il/elle/on voyait

nous voyions
vous voyiez

ils/elles voyaient

to see

i used to see
I was seeing

you used to see
you were seeing...

dire

je disais
tu disais

il/elle/on disait

nous disions
vous disiez

ils/elles disaient

must

I used to say
I was saying

you used to say
you were saying
he used to say

he was saying...

donner

je donnais
tu donnais

il/elle/on donnait

nous donnions
vous donniez

ils/elles donnaient

to give

I used to give
I was giving

you used to give
you were giving...

imparfait imparfait imparfait
imparfaitimparfaitimparfaitimparfait



Nouns:
un portable                      a mobile phone
un ordinateur                  a computer
les réseaux sociaux     social media
la vie                                   the life
les achats                         shopping
les gens                             people
un jeu                                  a game
une chanson                    a song
une appli                           an app
un projet                            a project
l’argent                             money
une chose                        a thing
la journée                         the day
la fin                                   the end

Verbs:
télécharger         download
passer                    spend (time)
acheter                  to buy
lire                            to read
écrire                       to write
avoir besoin de    to need
envoyer                   to send

Adjectives:
utile                         useful
inutile                     useless
facile                      easy
difficile                  difficult
compliqué.e        complicated
interdit.e               forbidden
quelque.s              some/a few
gratuit.e                free Phrases:

en un clic                     in one click
il me faut                     I need
il vous faut                  you need
ça veut dire que        it means that

quantity:
plein de                        a lot of
très peu de                  very little
une assiette de          a plate of
une cuillère de            a spoon of

frequency words:
après                                    after
avant                                    before
devant                                 at the front 
de retour chez moi          back home
chez moi                              at mine

Negatives:
ne....plus                   not anymore
ne ...rien                    nothing
ne...jamais               never



Je ne peux pas vivre sans mon portable

Mon objet préféré dans ma vie, c’est mon portable. J’ai besoin de l’avoir dans ma poche tout le temps. Je
l’utilise pour plein de choses. Par exemple, je télécharge quelques chansons tous les jours. Le soir, je passe
beaucoup de temps sur les réseaux sociaux. Souvent, je cherche des jeux gratuits car j’adore jouer à des jeux
en ligne. Quand ma batterie est vide, j’utilise mon ordinateur. J’ai beaucoup d’applis très utiles comme
spotify et youtube. Par contre, je ne fais jamais de choses interdites, comme télécharger des films
illégalement. Je n’ai pas beaucoup d’argent alors j’aime utiliser des applis où je peux faire des achats à
petits prix. J’adore lire donc je passe des heures sur des blogs et j’utilise aussi mon ordinateur ou mon
portable pour écrire et envoyer des messages. Mon appli préférée est instagram. 

Questions

1- What apps do they use?
2- Do they prefer to use their phone or computer?
3- What apps do they find useful?
4- What kind of shopping do they do online?
5- What do they spend the most time on?
6-How would you describe their relationship to their
phone?-

Answers
1- Spotify, Youtube, Instagram, games and shopping apps
2- Their phone, only use computer when phone battery is flat.
3- Spotify and Youtube
4- Cheap shopping
5- social media and blogs
6-They are addicted, they say they need to have it in their
pocket at all time.-



Qu’est-ce qu’il y a sur la photo?
1- Sur la photo, il y a un
garçon. In the photo,
there is a boy.
2- Il a un téléphone et un
ordinateur. He has a
phone and a laptop.
3- C’est à l’extérieur.
 It’s outside.
4- Il a des écouteurs.
 He has headphones.
5- Il écoute de la
musique. He is listening
to music.



Qu’est-ce qu’il y a sur la photo?
1- Sur la photo, il y a une
assiette de frites, un bol
de chips, des gâteaux,
des paquets de bonbons,
des bouteilles d’eau
minérales. 
In the picture, there are a
chips plate, a crisps bowl,
cakes, sweets bags, water
bottles.
2- C’est une cuisine.
 It’s a kitchen.
3- C’est de la bonne
nourriture.
 It’s good food.
4- Ce n’est pas un bon
repas.
 It’s not a good meal.



J’aime
J’adore
J’aime bien
J’apprécie
Je préfère

Entraine-toi (practice), traduis:

1- I like downloading songs._______________________________________________

2- You appreciate using apps on your phone.____________________________

3- She hates shopping online._____________________________________________

4- He doesn’t like playing games at all.__________________________________

5- We prefer watching tv.__________________________________________________

6- You love listening to music.____________________________________________

7- They like spending time on social media.______________________________

8- I prefer writing than reading._________________________________________

9- You hate writing.____________________________________________

Translation

Je n’aime pas
Je n’aime pas du tout
Je déteste
J’ai horreur de

Opinions verbs + infinitive

infinitive

infinitive



J’aime
J’adore
J’aime bien
J’apprécie
Je préfère

Answers

1- I like downloading songs.___J’aime télécharger des chansons.

2- You appreciate using apps on your phone._Tu apprécies utiliser des
applis sur ton téléphone.
3- She hates shopping online.___Elle déteste faire des achats en ligne.

4- He doesn’t like playing games at all._Il n’aime pas du tout jouer à
des jeux.
5- We prefer watching tv.____Nous préfèrons regarder la télévision.

6- You love listening to music.__Tu adores écouter de la musique.

7- They like spending time on social media.__Elles aiment bien passer
du temps sur les réseaux sociaux.
8- I prefer writing than reading.____Je préfère écrire que lire.

9- You hate writing.___Tu as horreur d’écrire. _

Translation

Je n’aime pas
Je n’aime pas du tout
Je déteste
J’ai horreur de

Opinions verbs + infinitive

infinitive

infinitive



Vocab to
improve

the
quality of

your
opinions



semaine 4



Nouns:
une association caritative     a charity
le bénévolat                         volunteering
le/la bénévole                  the volunteer
les personnes âgées       elderlies
les sans-abris                    homlesses
dans la rue                          on the street
le recyclage                       recycling
les médecins                      doctors
les transports en commun public transport
la pollution de l’air      air pollution
un arbre                             a tree
la piste cyclable             cycle path
l’environnement             environment

Verbs:
aider                         to help
supporter                to stand
rencontrer               to meet
participer à            to participate
trouver                      to find
chercher                  to look for

Adjectives:
autre.s                     other.s
malade                   ill/poorly
difficile                   difficulty
libre                          free
vieux/vieille          old
jeune                        young
fatigant                   tiring
prochain                  next
dernier                     last

Phrases:
il y a+time phrase       ago
depuis 3 mois                for 3 months
pendant 2 jours            for 2 days
comme ça                      like that
en mieux                         better

adverbs:
en difficulté                 struggling
en or                                (in) gold
en verre                          (in) glass
tard                                  late
tôt                                     early

frequency words:
vers                               at about
à cause de                  because of
cependant                  however
alors                              then/so
comme                         like/as
qui                                  who/which

Negatives:
ne....plus                   not anymore
ne ...rien                    nothing
ne...jamais               never



Je fais du bénévolat

Il y a deux mois, j’ai décidé de devenir bénévole. J’ai fait des recherches et j’ai trouvé quelques associations
caritatives dans ma ville: une qui aide les chats et les chiens, une qui aide les sans-abris, une qui aide les
personnes âgées et malades, une qui travaille pour l’environnement, comme planter des arbres et
développer le recyclage et les pistes cyclables pour limiter la pollution de l’air.
Comme je ne supporte pas la pauvreté, j’ai décidé d’aider les sans-abris. Deux journées par semaine, je
prépare des paquets de nourriture et de vêtements pour les sans-abris. Nous allons dans la rue pour
rencontrer les sans-abris et nous leur donnons des chaussures et des vêtements chauds. C’est un travail
assez fatigant mais j’aime aider les autres et ça me rend heureux.

Questions

1- What charity is he volunteering for?
2- Why did he pick this charity?
3- How many charities did he find in his town?
4- What does he do as a volunteer?
5- How frequently does he volunteer?
6-When did he decide to volunteer?- Answers

1- A charity that helps homeless people.
2- Because he can’t stand poverty.
3- 4 (for cats/dogs, for elderlies, for homeless, for
environment)
4- hands out food and clothes on the street
5- 2 days a week
6-2 months ago



Qu’est-ce qu’il y a sur la photo?
1- Sur la photo, il y a une
une sans-abris qui est
une femme.
In the picture, there is a
homeless who is a
woman.
2- Il y a un beau chien.
There is a pretty dog.
3- Il y a un homme qui
donne un café à la
femme.
 There is a man who is
giving a coffee to the
woman.
4- C’est dans la rue.
 It’s in the street.
5- Il fait froid. It’s cold.



Entraine-toi (practice), traduis:

1- I help homeless who sometimes are poorly.___________________________

2- You meet people who you find difficult.____________________________

3- I download apps which are free._______________________________________

4- He buys games that he likes.__________________________________

5- We prefer watching films which are funny. ___________________________

6- You love listening to music that is sad._______________________________

7- They spending time on social media that I like too.___________________

8- I prefer reading books which are about environment.______________

9- You hate eating cake which are too sweet.____________________________

Translation

QUI or QUE

1- When the relative pronoun is the
subject of the verb in the relative
clause, we use QUI.
Le chat qui mange du poisson.

When the relative pronoun is the
direct object of the verb in the
relative clause, we use QUE.
Le chat que je vois sur la chaise.

Relative clauses

A relative clause can be used to give
additional information about a noun.

They are introduced by a relative
pronoun like 'that', 'which', 'who',

'whose', 'where'.



Answers

1- I help homeless who sometimes are poorly._J’aide les sans-abris
qui sont parfois malades.
2- You meet people who you find difficult.__Tu rencontres des gens
que tu trouves difficiles.
3- I download apps which are free.___Je télécharge des applis qui
sont gratuites.
4- He buys games that he likes._Il achète des jeux qu’il aime.
5- We prefer watching films which are funny. __Nous préfèrons
regarder des films qui sont amusants.
6- You love listening to music that is sad.__Tu aimes écouter de la
musique qui est triste.
7- They spend time on social media that I like too.__Ils passent du
temps sur des réseaux sociaux que j’aime aussi.
8- I prefer reading books which are about environment._Je préfère
lire des livres qui parlent de l’environnement.
9- You hate eating cake which are too sweet.___Tu détestes manger
des gâteaux qui sont trop sucrés.

Translation

QUI or QUE

1- When the relative pronoun is the
subject of the verb in the relative
clause, we use QUI.
Le chat qui mange du poisson.

When the relative pronoun is the
direct object of the verb in the
relative clause, we use QUE.
Le chat que je vois sur la chaise.

Relative clauses

A relative clause can be used to give
additional information about a noun.

They are introduced by a relative
pronoun like 'that', 'which', 'who',

'whose', 'where' and 'when'.





semaine 5



Nouns:
un professeur                    a teacher
un voyage scolaire         a school trip
une journée scolaire      a school day
le dessin                              art/drawing
le terrain de foot         the football pitch
les notes                         the grades
les études                       studies
Monsieur...                      Mister
Messieurs                        Gentlemen
un élève                           a student
l’après-midi                   the afternoon
le cours                            the lesson
la classe                          the classroom
la bibliothèque             the library

Verbs:
travailler                  to work
réparer                      to mend
arrêter                       to stop
étudier                       to study
expliquer                  to explain
promettre                 to promise
commencer             to start

Adjectives:
obligatoire            mandatory
bête                         stupid
laid                           ugly
faux/fausse         wrong
bavard                   chatty
compliqué.e        complicated
interdit.e               forbidde Phrases:

en cours                       in lessons
en classe                     in lessons
et en plus                    and more
d’accord                      ok
je suis d’accord        I agree

time phrase:
de 8h à 9h                    from 8 to 9
à midi                             at noon
mardi dernier              last Tuesday
dans 2 semaines        in 2 weeks

frequency words:
encore une fois          one more time
là                                      there
ici                                      here
encore                            still
quoi                                  what

Negatives:
ne....plus                   not anymore
ne ...rien                    nothing
ne...jamais               never



Mon école est incroyable
Mon école a beaucoup d’avantages. D’abord, les professeurs sont jeunes et sympas. Monsieur Valentin est le
meilleur prof du collège parce qu’il explique très bien. Quand je suis en classe, je ne m’ennuie jamais. Je suis
vraiment sportif et les terrains de sport sont de très bonne qualité. Nous faisons du sport quatre fois par
semaine. Quel bonheur!
J’ai promis à mes parents d’avoir de bonnes notes donc j’ai commencé à beaucoup travailler et j’ai arrêté de
sortir tard tous les soirs. Et maintenant, j’arrive toujours  à l’heure en cours et en classe je suis très
concentrée. Et pendant la pause, je révise à la bibliothèque où c’est vraiment calme.
Ma matière préférée est le dessin parce que j’aime l’art et la salle d’art est incroyable, je l’adore. Dans deux
ans, je voudrais faire des études d’art à l’université et puis je voudrais devenir professeur.
Et en plus, dans mon collège, on fait des voyages scolaires qui sont super intéressants tous les mois.

Questions

1- How frequent are the school trips in this school?
2- Why is Mr. Valentin the best teacher?
3- What did she stop doing to have better grades?
4- What does she want to study later?
5- How many times do they have PE each week?
6-What does she do at break?

Answers
1- once a month
2- because he explains very well
3- going out every night
4- art
5- 4
6-revise at the library



Qu’est-ce qu’il y a sur la photo?
1- Sur la photo, il y a huit
élèves, quatre filles et
quatre garçons.
In the picture, there are 8
students, 4 girls and 4
boys.
2- C’est dans une salle de
classe. It’s in a classroom.
3- Les élèves travaillent.
 The students are
working.
4- Ils ont l’air heureux.
 They look happy.



This structure doesn’exist in French.
You need to say: the school of my
sister: l’école de ma soeur

Entraine-toi (practice), traduis:

1- My friend’s brother has good grades._______________________________

2- My Mum’s favourite actor is Tom Hanks.____________________________

3- My cousin’s dog is ugly._____________________________________________

4- Her sister’phone is now mended.__________________________________

5- Your cat’s food cost a lot of money.___________________________________

6- Your dad’s favourite film is starting.___________________________________

7- My school’s computer are very old.______________________________

8- I prefer to read my friend’s books._____________________________________

9- Your neighbours’ house is ugly and old._______________________________

Translation

The structure:
Article + noun’s + noun
Ex: My sister’s school



This structure doesn’exist in French.
You need to say: the school of my
sister: l’école de ma soeur

Answers

1- My friend’s brother has good grades._Le frère de ma copine a des
bonnes notes.
2- My Mum’s favourite actor is Tom Hanks.__L’acteur préféré de ma
mère est Tom Hanks.
3- My cousin’s dog is ugly._Le chien de mon cousin est laid.

4- Her sister’phone is now mended.__Le téléphone de sa soeur est
réparé.
5- Your cat’s food cost a lot of money._La nourriture de ton chat
coûte beaucoup d’argent.
6- Your dad’s favourite film is starting._Le film préféré de ton père
commence.
7- My school’s computers are very old.__Les ordinateurs de mon
école sont très vieux.
8- I prefer to read my friend’s books. Je préfère lire les livres de mon
copain.
9- Your neighbours’ house is ugly and old.__La maison de tes voisins
est laide et vieille.

Translation

The structure:
Article + noun’s + noun
Ex: My sister’s school



semaine 6



Nouns:
un vélo                               a bike
une planche à voile      a wind surf
une promenade             a walk
un mur d’escalade       a climbing wall
une moto                          a motorbike
une piste cyclable       a cycle path
la publicité                      the advert
la météo                           the weather
la crème solaire             sun screen
les baskets                      trainers
le marché                        the market
la santé                            the health
le journal                         the newspaper

Verbs:
voir                           to see
venir                         to come
conduire                 to drive/ride
boire                         to drink
vouloir                     to want
appeler                    to call
ouvrir                        to open

Adjectives:
sportif.ive                  sporty
court                            short
libre                              free
deuxième                   second
même                           same

Phrases:

il n’est pas question: there is no
way
prendre le bus: to take the bus

adverbs:
rarement                      rarely
vraiment                       really
dommage                    a shame
de plus en plus de     more and more

frequency words:
après                                    after
avant                                    before
devant                                 at the front 
de retour chez moi          back home
chez moi                              at mine

Negatives:
ne....plus                   not anymore
ne ...rien                    nothing
ne...jamais               never



Dans mon temps libre, je fais beaucoup de choses.

Dans mon temps libre, je fais beaucoup d’activités différentes. Comme je suis très sportive, je fais souvent de
l’activité physique. L’été, je fais de la planche à voile quand je pars en vacances au bord de la mer. En
général, je vais à l’école en vélo parce qu’il y a beaucoup de pistes cyclables dans ma ville. Cependant
quand il y a trop de pluie, je prends les transports en commun.
Le weekend dernier, dans le journal, j’ai vu une publicité pour un nouveau centre sportif avec un mur
d’escalade. J’ai appelé ma meilleure amie pour y aller. Elle a une moto et elle a proposé de m’y conduire.
Nous y sommes allés hier et nous avons passé une journée splendide. Après l’escalade, nous sommes allés
au café et nous avons bu un chocolat chaud et nous avons mangé des gâteaux avant de rentrer à la maison.

Questions

1- What sports do they do?
2- How did they hear about the new sport centre?
3- How did they get there?
4- What did they do in the sport centre?
5- What did they do before going home?
6-How do they generally go to school and why? Answers

1- They do wind surfing in the summer, cycling every day and
climbing.
2- They saw an advert in the newspaper.
3- Their friends drove them on their motorbike.
4- climbing
5- Went to the cafe, drank hot chocolate and ate cake
6-They cycle because there are a lot of cycle paths.



Qu’est-ce qu’il y a sur la photo?
1- Sur la photo, il y a une
fille qui fait de l’escalade.
In the picture, there is a
girl who is climbing.
2- La fille a les cheveux
longs. The girl has long
hair.
3- Elle porte un t-shirt
rouge. She is wearing a
red t-shirt.

4- Elle porte des
chaussures marron et
noires.
 She is wearing brown and
black shoes.



 beau, joli, double, jeune, vieux, petit, 
grand, gros, mauvais, demi, bon, nouveau

go BEFORE the noun:
Translate:
1- I bought a new blazer. _________________________________________________________

2- He has a bad health. ___________________________________________________________

3- We have a beautiful car. _______________________________________________________

4- My boss has a fat cat.__________________________________________________________

5- You always have good grades._________________________________________________ 

Translation



 beau, joli, double, jeune, vieux, petit, 
grand, gros, mauvais, demi, bon, nouveau

go BEFORE the noun:
Translate:
1- I bought a new blazer. __J’ai acheté une nouvelle veste.___

2- He has a bad health. __Il a une mauvaise santé.______

3- We have a beautiful car. ___Nous avons une belle voiture.______

4- My boss has a fat cat.___Mon patron a un gros chat.____

5- You always have good grades.___Tu as toujours des bonnes notes._____ 

Grammar




